ASIA



LIFE

**REPRINT** 

SCIENCES

The Asian International

Journal of Life Sciences

Beyond Excellence©

SUPPLEMENT 21(2) 28 DECEMBER 2019

Social & Legal Changes for Sustainable Development: Trends, Issues & Effective Solutions

e-mails: asialifesciences@yahoo.com wsmgruezo@gmail.com Website - http://emtpub.com/journals/ALS/

©Rushing Water Publishers Ltd., 2019 Printed in the Philippines

## ASIA LIFE SCIENCES The Asian International Journal of

Life Sciences Beyond Excellence©

ASIA LIFE SCIENCES - The Asian International Journal of Life Sciences (ISSN 0117-3375) is a non-profit, non-stock, refereed/peer-reviewed (double-blind review), international, scientific journal devoted to the publication of original research in the Life Sciences and other disciplines. Articles originating from anywhere in the world are most welcome.

Two issues a year make a volume.

## BOARD OF EDITORS - Asia Life Sciences Supplement 21(2) 2019

*Chairman & Chief Editor:* **Dr. William Sm. Gruèzo**, 7288 Santosha Avenue corner Astheya Street, Istana Lovina Bay Park, Puypuy, Bay 4033, Laguna, Philippines.

Members: Dr. Yung-Cheol Byun, Department of Computer Engineering, Jeju National University, 102 Jejudaehak-ro, Jeju-si, Jeju-do, 690-756 South Korea. Dr. Liding Chen, State Key Laboratory of Urban and Regional Ecology. Research Center for Eco-Environmental Sciences, Chinese Academy of Sciences, Shuangqing Road 18, Haidian, Beijing 100085, China. Dr. Leonila A. Corpuz-Raros, Institute of Weed Science, Entomology & Plant Pathology, College of Agriculture and Food, University of the Philippines Los Banos (UPLB), College 4031, Laguna. Dr. Maribel L. Dionisio-Sese, Plant Biology Division, Institute of Biological Sciences, College of Arts & Sciences, UPLB, College 4031, Laguna. Dr. Irineo J. Dogma Jr., Graduate School, University of Santo Tomas, España St., Manila. Dr. Agustine I. Doronila, School of Chemistry, University of Melbourne, Victoria 3010, Australia. Dr. Celeste Leiden G. Gruèzo DVM/MA, 7288 Santosha Avenue corner Astheya Street, Istana Lovina Bay Park, Puypuy, Bay 4033, Laguna. **Dr. Rafael D. Guerrero III**, National Academy of Science and Technology, Level 3, Science Heritage Building, Department of Science and Technology Complex, Bicutan, Taguig City, MetroManila. Dr. Mehmet Varol, Muğla Sıtkı Koçman University, Faculty of Science, Department of Molecular Biology and Genetics, Kötekli Campus, 48000, Muğla, Turkey.

## Technical Production Manager: Ydred Harriss G. Gruèzo BSA

Deadlines for submission of manuscripts. First issue-01 July; Second issue-01 January. Please contact the Chief Editor/Chairman, ALS Board of Editors (see addresses below). Subscription Prices. Foreign: Institutional - US\$1000; Individual - US\$800 (including Volumes 1-28, 1992-2019 + 21 Supplements). Local: Institutional - PhP10,000; Individual - PhP8,000 (including Volumes 1-28, 1992-2019 + 21 Supplements). Prepayment of order/back order is required. All issues are to be sent by air mail. Back orders will have an additional packing-handling and postage cost.

Send manuscripts, subscription orders and correspondence to: Dr. William Sm. Gruèzo, ASIA LIFE SCIENCES, The Asian International Journal of Life Sciences, 81 Governor F.T. San Luis Avenue, Masaya, Bay 4033, Laguna, Philippines. e-mails: asialifesciences@yahoo.com wsmgruezo@gmail.com Website: http://emtpub.com/journals/ALS/

**©Rushing Water Publishers Ltd. 2019** 

**Printed in the Philippines** 

# ASIA LIFE SCIENCES

The Asian International Journal of Life Sciences ISSN 0117-3375

# Supplement 21 Number 2 28 December 2019

# **CONTENTS**

1 Theoretical and legal analysis of foreign experience on illegal amber production: Environmental and economic aspects OLEKSII DROZD, SERGII PAVLENKO

& VOLODYMYR SEVRUK

**21** Students' scientific activity as a component of the lawyers' professional training

# LILIYA RIABOVOL, YURIY HARUST, OLENA DZHAFAROVA & YEVGENY SOBOL

**45** Administrative and legal mechanism of land relations protection in Ukraine and Russia: Comparative legal analysis **OLEKSANDR SVIDERSKYI**,

OLEKSANDR HAVRYLENKO.

# KOSTIANTYN KOVALENKO & TETIANA SHLAPKO

**59** Personality sense transformation of the professional activity of practical psychologists with different behavior strategies

NADIIA M. BIBIK,

IRYNA YA. ZHOROVA & MARIANNA M. MARUSYNETS

77 Legal education and science in Ukraine: Tendencies and perspectives OLENA CHERNETSKA, OLHA VARYCH,

DARIIA BAIRAK & TAMARA MOMOTENKO

**87** Invalidation in a court of law of certain types of contracts concluded in connection with the provision of medical services **OLENA P. RIABCHENKO**,

VOLODYMYR YA. MATSIUK &YURII YU. RIABCHENKO Cont. on Next Page

Reviewers for this Issue: Refer to pages 993-998 of this Issue.

101 Problems of the introduction of the academic honesty principles in domestic institutions of higher education

ANATOLII KULISH, INNA GYRENKO,

## OLEKSANDR KOBZAR & BOHDANA PAVLENKO

117 Administrative and legal mechanism of execution of decisions of the European Court of Human Rights as the basis of case law application in the judicial system of Ukraine Oksana Pchelina, Viktor Sezonov, Valerija Myrhorod-Karpova

& YEVHENIIA ZHEROBKINA

135 Theoretical and legal analysis of the category "financial security of the state"

SERHII SHARTAVA, MARINA SMOLYAROVA, YURIY HARUST & KONSTIANTYN KRYVOSHEIEV

**153** International financial institutions as subjects of the financial system of the state **TETIANA SYROID**,

YURIY KOLOMIETS, OLEKSANDR KLIUIEV & VALERIIA MYRHOROD-KARPOVA

**165** Legal responsibility of police officers in conducting pre-trial investigations of crimes

ANATOLIY KLOCHKO, DARYA KAZNACHEYEVA, OLEKSANDR MUZYCHUK & ELENA KISELOVA

177 Constitutional complaint in Ukraine: Theory and practice TATYANA MILOVA, PAVLO PINCHUK,

NATALIIA RYBALKO & SERHII HRECHANIUK

189 Search for ways to optimize the activities of state bodies managing the funds of international technical assistance ANDRII MANZHULA, YURIY HARUST, VALERIIA MYRHOROD-KARPOVA & YEVGENY SOBOL

**213** Problems of construction of the financial system of the state: Organizational and legal aspects

YURIY HARUST, DARIA ZAGORSKA,

## SVITLANA VASHCHENKO & SERHII MOSKALENKO

233 Foreign experience in providing public security and order by police during mass events and the possibility of using it in Ukraine

# VITALII PCHELIN, LINA FOMINA, RUSLANA MAKSAKOVA & IVAN KUBARIEV

**247** Economic crimes: Innovative mechanisms of counteraction by law enforcement agencies

# YURII HARUST, VADYM MELNYK, YURII KIIASHKO & VIRA HALUNKO

**265** Problems of construction of national financial system under the influence of globalization processes

# LIUDMYLA RUDENKO, YEVHEN BARASH, IRYNA PETROVA & IHOR BOHDANIUK

**279** Comparative analysis of the financial system of Ukraine and foreign countries

# IHOR CHUMACHENKO, VALENTYN MELNYK & VIKTORIIA SYCHOVA

**295** Vectors of education development: From enlightenment to post-modernism

# LEONID C. VAKHOVSKYI, ANDRIY V. IVCHENKO & YANA S. SNISARENKO

309 Innovations in Ukrainian modern art: New technologies TATYANA MIRONOVA

# & ANASTASIIA HONCHARENKO

325 Modernization of the academic discipline
"Administrative law" GANNA GUBINA, OLENA IVANII
& ALINA KUROVA

341 Ensuring of child's dignity as a principle of modern education: Administrative and legal aspects
OLENA KOVALOVA, MAKSYM KORNIJENKO
& OLENA POSTOL

359 Modern law education in the context of natural understanding of law ANDRII M. KUCHUK, LILIIA M. SERDIUK & YULIIA S. ZAVHORODNIA

**371** Developing computer literacy among elementary school children – Education for the future

NEVENKA TATKOVIĆ, LINDA JURAKOVIĆ & SANJA TATKOVIĆ

385 Role of modern legal elite in formation of legal culture of Ukrainian society LILIIA MATVIEIEVA,
POLINA BALTAJI & VIKTOR KONOPELSKY

**405** Legal regulation of conformity assessment of personnel qualification in construction

OLEKSANDR NEPOMNYASHCHYY, OKSANA MEDVEDCHUK & IRYNA LAHUNOVA

421 Legal education in Ukraine in the context of integration to the European educational space
LIUDMYLA DOBROBOH, VITALII ZAVHORODNII
& OLENA ORLOVA

**433** International customs law as a means of public and private law specialists training improvement

IEVHEN V. BILOZOROV, OLENA M. IVANII & SERHII M. PEREPOLKIN

**447** Approaches to education reform for children with special needs worldwide

OLEG M. REZNIK, VYACHESLAV V. VOLIK
& OLHA I. BEZPALOVA

461 Genesis and legal regulation of mediation institute in Ukraine IULIIA SHMALENKO, OLENA MITINA & OLGA KUDELINA

479 Three subject didactics in professional-pedagogical training of future lawyers on the basis of acme-culturological approach OLENA IVANII,

**IHOR IVANII & TAMARA KHARCHENKO** 

**493** Public administration of legal education in the practice of the European Court of Human Rights

RUSLAN S. KARAHIOZ, OKSANA V. LEHKA & SERHII I. MINCHENKO

**505** The right to education of refugees

MARYNA DEI, TAMARA KORTUKOVA, VITALII KHODANOVYCH, KAREN ISMAILOV & ANATOLIY FRANTSUZ

**517** Using English as a foreign language when teaching subjects of the criminal law cycle

# NATALIA SEMCHUK, SOFIIA LYKHOVA & ULIYA DEMIANENKO

**535** Guarantees of realization of the rights and freedoms of the person in the national legal system: Teaching technique

# ANATOLII SHEVCHENKO, OLENA KALHANOVA, SERHII KUDIN & OLENA KRAVCHENKO

**549** Creating a safe educational environment for children deprived of parental care: Pedagogical and socio-legal aspects

VIKTORIIA SYDORENKO & ALLA KOVALCHUK

**563** Effectiveness of the program for development of prosecutor's ecological and legal consciousness

MARYNA DEI, OLEKSANDR KOBETS, ANDRIY HONCHAROV, YAROSLAV TSEKHMISTER & KATERINA SHAPOVALOVA

**577** Prevention of human rights violations

OKSANA MYRONETS, MYKHAILO BURDIN, OKSANA TSUKAN & YURII NESTERIAK

**593** Sounding multicode texts: codes, structure, components

NINA L. FEDOTOVA, VALENTINA A. SENTSOVA, NATALYA M. MARUSENKO, TATYANA B. AVLOVA, BORIS N. KOVALENKO & DARIA A. SHCHUKINA

617 Development of a software-hardware complex to diagnose electro-thermal overloads of semi-conductor sensors ARKADIY A. SKVORTSOV, SERGEY M. ZUEV, DMITRIY O. VARLAMOV & MARINA V. KORYACHKO

**629** Minimization of asymmetry of thrust of dual-flow turbojet engines of airliner in accordance with the results of system analysis of thrust parameters

ADELIYA YU. BUROVA

645 Features of heat transfer in dissociated air supersonic flows PETR V. NIKITIN, LEV N. RABINSKIY & OLGA V. TUSHAVINA

**657** Principles of equitable reparation in the case of compulsory alienation of immovable property

EKATERINA A. GILINA, YURY V. MISHALCHENKO, GEORGE V. ALEXEYEV, ANDREY V. TOROPYGIN & EKATERINA B. RADCHENKO

667 Basic personality structure

VLADIMIR A. STARKOVSKIY

689 Investigation of a complex stress-strain state of a cylindrical shell with a dynamically collapsing internal elastic base under the influence of temperature fields of various physical nature

BORIS A. ANTUFEV,

EKATERINA L. KUZNETSOVA, LEV N. RABINSKIY
& OLGA V. TUSHAVINA

**697** Certain aspects of interaction between the state and civil law in CIS countries

YULIIA V. TSURKAN-SAIFULINA,

KONSTIANTYN M. VITMAN & DENIS A. KOLODIN

719 Legal relation: The issues of delineation (on the basis of the civil law of Ukraine) OLEG M. YAROSHENKO,

ANDREY M. SLIUSAR, OLENA H. SEREDA

& VIKTORIIA O. ZAKRYNYTSKA

735 Property civil law liability and material liability of employees for damage caused to an employer:

On the basis of civil law of Ukraine

OLEG M. YAROSHENKO, OLENA V. MOSKALENKO, LARYSA YU. VELYCHKO & VOLODYMYR S. KOVRYGIN

**749** Hardening of samples made of titanium and iron-chromium-nickel alloys to improve their strength, resource and fatigue characteristics

ARKADIY A. SKVORTSOV & EVGENIYA O. GNATYLIK

759 Digital interpretation of gas dynamics problems as a means of optimizing fundamental general engineering education VALERIY V. BODRYSHEV,

# LIDIYA G. NARTOVA & LEV N. RABINSKIY

775 Complex stressed deformed state of a cylindrical shell with a dynamically destructive internal elastic base under the action of temperature fields of various physical nature

BORIS A. ANTUFEV,

EKATERINA L. KUZNETSOVA,

LEV N. RABINSKIY & OLGA V. TUSHAVINA

<b>783</b>	3 On th	ne g	enerati	on of	mech	anical	vibrati	ons	of se	mi-
(	conduc	ctor	membr	anes	under	local	pulsed	exci	tatio	n

# ARKADIY A. SKVORTSOV & IVAN A. POSELSKY

**795** The doctrine of human rights in the field of private law relations: legal theoretical aspects

VERONICA YU. HORIELOVA, VASYL A. OMELCHUK, OLEKSANDR F. KALINICHENKO, INNA V. NAIDA & YULIYA V. SAGAYDAK

821 Civil law contract: Doctrinal and legal approaches
OLEKSANDRA O. KARMAZA, YULIA M. PANFILOVA,
ANASTASIIA A. SAPAROVA,

ALINA S. SHELUDCHENKOVA & SERHII M. ORIEKHOV 837 Heat transfer in nonlinear anisotropic growing bodies

based on analytical solution

EKATERINA L. KUZNETSOVA & LEV N. RABINSKIY

847 Issues and prospects of legal regulation of commercial concession in Ukraine TATYANA V. BODNAR,

OLENA A. BELIANEVYCH, NINO B. PATSURIIA,

VALERIA V. RADZYVILIUK & VIKTORIIA V. RIEZNIKOVA

863 Protection of ownership right in the court: The essence and particularities VIACHESLAV V. VAPNIARCHUK,

IRYNA I. PUCHKOVSKA,

OLEKSII V. TAVOLZHANSKYI & ROMAN I. TASHIAN

VALENTYN O. BAZHANOV, VIKTORIIA O. BAZHANOVA,

**881** The right to artistic freedom in post-Soviet countries

VIRA O. KACHUR, LILIIA O. PANKOVA

& MARYNA V. PUSHKAR

897 Mathematical modeling of heat and mass transfer in shock layer on dimmed bodies at aerodynamic heating of aircraft LEV N. RABINSKIY,

OLGA V. TUSHAVINA & VLADIMIR F. FORMALEV

**913** Civil law regulation of contracts for joint activity in Ukraine and other post-socialist states

ALLA V. ZELISKO, VALENTYNA A. VASYLYEVA, BORYS V. MALYSHEV, MYKHAILO M. KHOMENKO & SERGIY V. SARANA

**927** Groundwater level dynamics in the territory of the Altai Republic **VLADIMIR V. ROLDUGIN**,

VALENTINA YE. KATS, NINA A. KOCHEEVA & TATJANA V. BOLBUH

943 Linearization of radiant heat fluxes in the mathematical modeling of growing bodies by the action of high temperatures in additive manufacturing

## EKATERINA L. KUZNETSOVA & LEV N. RABINSKIY

955 The problem of trajectory optimization of the interorbital mission for a special service space craft with electric propulsion system for removing space debris objects ILYA A. NIKOLICHEV, VLADIMIR A. OBUKHOV,

## ALEKSANDR I. POKRYSHKIN & VICTORIA V. SVOTINA

977 Investigation of an elastic curvilinear cylindrical shell in the shape of a parabolic cylinder, taking into account thermal effects during laser sintering

LEV N. RABINSKIY & OLGA V. TUSHAVINA

993 Reviewers - Asia Life Sciences Supplement 21,

Number 2, 2019

**999** Board of Editors - *Asia Life Sciences* Supplement 21, Number 2, 2019

Beyond Excellence©

*e*-mails: asialifesciences@yahoo.com wsmgruezo@gmail.com http://emtpub.com/journals/ALS/

©Rushing Water Publishers Ltd., Philippines 2019

Actual Date of Publication: *Asia Life Sciences* Supplement 21(2) 2019 - 28 December 2019



Beyond Excellence©

81 Governor F.T. San Luis Avenue, Masaya, Bay 4033 Laguna, Philippines Celfone nos. (063) (049) 0916-526-0164; 0977-706-0972 e-mails: asialifesciences@yahoo.com wsmgruezo@gmail.com http://emtpub.com/journals/ALS/ ©Rushing Water Publishers Ltd., Philippines 2019

Asia Life Sciences has an Impact Factor of 0.180

The papers published in *Asia Life Sciences* are indexed/covered by SCOPUS, Elsevier B.V., Radarweg 29, 1043 NX, Amsterdam, The Netherlands; CABI, Wallingford, Oxon, UK; China National Knowledge Infrastructure (CNKI), 66 Xixiaokou Avenue, Haidian District, Beijing, China; J-Gate, Informatics Publishing Limited, No. 194, RV Road, Basavanagudi, Bangalore-560004, Karnataka, India and EBSCO Publishing, Inc., 10 Estes Street, Ipswich, Massachusetts, 01938-0682, USA.

Asia Life Sciences is a recipient of the Journal Accreditation Award of the Commission on Higher Education (CHED), Republic of the Philippines (2010-2016).

Printed on acid-free papers

Actual Date of Publication: Asia Life Sciences Supplement 21, Number 2, 2019 - 28 December 2019

# ASIA LIFE SCIENCES Supplement 21(2): 517-534, 2019 The Asian International Journal of Life Sciences

# Using English as a foreign language when teaching subjects of the criminal law cycle

NATALIA SEMCHUK<sup>1\*</sup>, SOFIIA LYKHOVA<sup>1</sup> and ULIYA DEMIANENKO<sup>2</sup>

The paper analysed the experiences in a field of teaching Criminal Law cycle subjects in English. The research was held at the National Aviation University (Kyiv, Ukraine) and involved 11 first-year students and 11 second-year students majoring in "Jurisprudence" who study full-time (teaching is conducted in English). The purpose of the paper was to study the formation of foreign language competence by students-lawyers at the same time as the formation of general legal competences in teaching a foreign language. At the same time, the students must operate the English terminology and know the theoretical approaches to problems in English-speaking countries. After establishing the appropriate psychological and pedagogical conditions, the number of students in the experimental group having the productive and creative levels of readiness to use English in their professional activity has significantly increased compared to the control group.

Keywords: assessment, criminal legal disciplines, motivation, English-speaking countries

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>Department of Criminal Law and Procedure, National Aviation University, 03058, 1 Kosmonavt Komarov Avenue, Kyiv, Ukraine

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>Department of Criminal Law, Yaroslav Mudryi National Law University, 61024, 77 Pushkinskaya Str., Kharkiv, Ukraine

<sup>\*</sup>Corresponding author: e-mail - natal-sem@uoel.uk

### INTRODUCTION

The subjects of the criminal law cycle occupy a special place in the preparation of specialists from three specialties – "International Law", "Law Enforcement" and "Jurisprudence". The goal of teaching "Criminal Law" is mastering theoretical knowledge in the field of criminal law and strengthening of practical skills to apply them in specific situations, the formation of legal culture in the practical application of the criminal law. The tasks of studying the discipline are: study of legislative and other normative legal acts regulates legal relations in the field of crime and punishment, studying the basic institutions and concepts of criminal law, and skills acquisition of theoretical knowledge in practice (Eshun & Amoako-Agyeman 2016, Annamalah et al. 2016, Wellham 2016, Petrovic 2016, Petrosyan 2016a, 2016b; Vansover 2016, Schoeneman & Sawyer 2016, Ojha 2016, O'Brien & Adam 2016a, 2016b; Lynch & Smith 2016a, 2016b; Carter & Francis 2016, Dhakal & Pant 2016, McAuliffe 2016, Smith 2016, Millear 2016, Lynch et al. 2016, Doe 2016).

One of these techniques is the Content and Language Integrated Learning (CLIL). With regard to the content of CLIL, the scope of the subject and linguistic content can vary in one way or another, creating content-led and language-led models. When designing a course based on the CLIL method, a person must take into account 4 Cs: Content – development and acquisition of new knowledge, skills, subject area skills; Communication – learning to use the language to acquire knowledge; Cognition – development of cognitive and mental abilities, solving problem situations; Culture – identification of a part of culture, with the awareness of the existence of an alternative culture, that is, the path to intercultural understanding (Coyle et al. 2010). But the use of such a technique should correspond to the language policy of the university and be laid already at the level of the curriculum.

Not looking at the fact that the National Aviation University has been training foreign languages for more than 30 years, so far this system cannot be implemented as a whole due to the specific requirements for the curriculum. In addition, in general, this system does not take into account the specificity of the lawyer's training. But some of its elements have an emphasis on teaching lawyers in an foreign language. Legal education is a broad concept. It includes training professionals for practicing in courts, law teaching, law research, administration in different areas, legal consulting in commercial and industrial companies and other activities which postulate and require legal knowledge and skills (Vinnichenko & Gladun 2018). The core objective of legal education in universities is to enable students to get the essential legal competencies and skills, formalizing this process by gaining official certification. It is a necessary requirement for admission to certain types of legal practice (i.e. an advocate or a judge).

The law schools are required to equip their graduates not only with contemporary theoretical knowledge of law but also with enhanced practical skills, which are necessary for lawyers, judges and professionals in related fields to act effectively in a globalized context. The globalization of legal education has a significant relationship with legal practice in a globalized context. This study specifically examined and focused on the pathways to admission and the

process through which the lawyers are licensed by evaluating the practical skills incorporated into the school curriculum (Yu et al. 2018).

In the era of European integration, the role of English language acquisition is increasing for these specialists as well. Teaching subjects of the criminal law cycle in English is by its nature multidimensional and interdisciplinary. With regard to the use of pedagogical developments in this area it is worth noting that the Faculty of Law belongs to the faculties, which are most often chosen for the study of students with disables and teachers are ready to teach them a course with definite peculiarities (Colyn 2017). At the same time, there are the next types of training activities accepted under the obligations of training activities accepted under the obligations of continuous or specialization training for law students: Attending face to face training sessions, Completing distance training sessions, Completing e-learning modules, Watching a webinar, Completing blended learning activities, Attending training conferences, Participating in training activities as trainer or teacher, Writing and Publishing (Fernando & Perez 2018).

Ukrainian law schools should also focus on the possibility of training students with disabilities and the widespread use of multimedia and distance learning to compensate for special educational needs. The first aspect of this phenomenon is that such teaching is part of legal education, and in its study it is necessary to take into account the current trends in this field. At the present stage, many researchers are paying attention to certain aspects of legal education. Thus, the researchers draw attention to the development of certain aspects of legal education, which are important and for the teaching of the lawful disciplines in a foreign language. For example, the need to pay more attention to the development of basic skills such as research, reading and writing (Colgan et al. 2017); the need for wider use of legal experiments in the training of lawyers (Jun Ping 2012); the importance of subject orientation, standardization of legal education, raising the level of legal education and regulating the management of legal education (Li 2018). Also, researchers pay attention to a number of universal deficiencies in legal education. Among such problems is the emergence of legal schools with low cost of tuition and unsatisfactory level of teaching (Tejani 2018); the historical influence of legal centralism and positivism (Himonga & Diallo 2017), a shortage of applied disciplines that are on the verge of providing LLB and greatly affect socio-legal research (Brooman 2017) and a great inspiration for learning such general legal categories of fundamental rights and obligations and justice (Hazat 2018). Except for the category of Justice, subcategories relevant to the primary categories were mentioned by more participants at the end of the semester".

As can be seen from the analysis of these studies, the issues of legal educations ares the object of attention of scholars from around the world, but mainly explore some aspects of legal education. The issue of teaching certain legal subjects in a foreign language has not yet been the subject of active study by scientists (Willis et al. 2018, Eshun et al. 2018, Swaroop & Dixit 2018, Wu et al. 2018, Kamel & Watfa 2018, Knezovic & Musrati 2018, Tahirsylaj et al. 2018, Prior 2018, Narayan 2018, Venkateswaran & Vincent 2018, Siddins 2018, Carter 2018, Moir et al. 2018, Peel et al. 2018, Pearson & Athota 2018, Carter & Goldie 2018, Daniel 2018, Novitasari

& Yusuf 2018, Nuhayatie 2018, Elisondo 2018, Vansover 2018, Chougule 2018, Lynch et al. 2018, Al-Qatawneh & Al-Qatawneh 2018, Trevallion 2018, Ramkumar & Rajini 2018a, 2018b; Pulla 2018, McWaters & Hawkins 2018, Le & Chen 2018, Mungai 2018, Salim 2018, Frederico et al. 2018, Sharma 2018, Bhattacharyya 2018, Hawkins & McWaters 2018).

The second aspect, which is important in the study of the teaching of legal disciplines in a foreign language, is the use of the philological sources themselves in the educational process. The problems of foreign language training raise a great interest in the European educational space. Also, when teaching a foreign language, there are many methodological problems. In this case, the teachers who work on such a program are not philologists. They are professional lawyers with an additional knowledge of English (such as certificates B2 of the CEFR levels). English here serves as a learning tool. Meanwhile, questions arose about the fact that the program of the Faculty of Law and the Faculty of International Relations in this case became very close. Language to a certain extent is a working tool of a lawyer. At the same time, the use of language as a working tool by philologists and lawyers is different. The complexities that arise during the teaching process are also different. The key to philology disciplines is the understanding of the basics of phonetics, grammar, word formation, and others. The basis for lawyers in the mentioned above issue is the understanding and the use of words as terms in different languages and the relationship between them. That is, for the philologist speech serves as the object of study, and for a lawyer, it is a method of cognition. In this case, both philologists and lawyers focus their work on analyzing texts or oral speeches. In practice, these cause some difficulties in teaching legal disciplines in English. After all, philologists do not have the necessary knowledge of subjects taught by lawyers for future lawyers. At the same time, not all lawyers have sufficient level of language training (Garrigan 2017, Pendery 2017, Lynch et al. 2017, Knight & Galletly 2017, Pulla et al. 2017, Jiang & Smith 2017, Doe et al. 2017, Whiting 2017, Madden 2017a, 2017b; Daniel & Johnstone 2017, Hawkins et al. 2017, Kampel et al. 2017, Parker 2017, Herbert 2017, Boon et al. 2017, Ranatunga & Pagliano 2017, Carter et al. 2017, Carter & Goldie 2017, Campbell & Narayan 2017, Pulla 2017, Mukhopadhyay & Saha 2017, Vansover 2017, Sellars 2017, Muñoz-Blanco & Vargas 2017, Lynch & Madden 2017, Strydom 2017, Wagner 2017).

Comparison in the process of teaching with other countries has a number of difficulties. First of all, English is a working language in more than 30 countries. Among them are not only Canada, Great Britain, the USA, but also, for example, Ghana, Mauritius and Singapore. All these English-speaking countries use unequal legal terminology. At the same time, most of these countries belong to the common law system. For example, some countries use the term "barrister", and the other countries use the term "attorney-at-law" in the same sense as the "advocate". The second problem is that Ukraine's legislation has long evolved in isolation from global trends. This led to the fact that in Criminal Law there are institutes that do not have foreign analogues. Therefore, we must achieve two goals. Learn the fundamentals of Criminal Law in Ukraine and learn the relevant terminology in English. At the same time, English terminology is not unified because there are many English-

speaking countries with different legislation. And several synonymous or similar terms may be used to refer to one phenomenon. To solve these problems we need to use special resources. First of all, we should use special resources for translators. Secondly, we need Ukrainian legislation (for example, the Criminal Code of Ukraine in English). Today in our country, there are more than a hundred thousand normative legal acts. At the same time, only about one of them is available officially or high-quality translated. In this case, even the available translated texts are not amended in line with changes in the legislation.

The purpose of the paper was to study the formation of foreign language competence by students-lawyers at the same time as the formation of general legal competences in teaching foreign language. The tasks needed to implement the purpose are the following: to analyze the necessity of using different types of scientific and methodological literature on the issues of forming foreign language competence; to define the characteristic features in teaching students of the Faculty of Law with English language teaching using different teaching methods in the educational environment of the university, and to determine the pedagogical conditions for developing future lawyers readiness to useEnglish in their professional activity by testing methodology of the formation of the foreign language competence for students of the Faculty of Law with English language teaching. On the basis of the analysis of the concept and structure of foreign language competence of professionals in different areas, it is established that in modern pedagogical literature there is no common understanding of the essence of foreign language competence. "Foreign language competence" is a complex and multi-faceted scientific concept. Summarizing various scientific theoretical approaches, we formulate "foreign language competence" as a dynamic combination of knowledge, practical skills. Foreign language competence determines the ability of individuals to use a foreign language in professional, scientific activities and in social communication successfully (Stavytska 2017).

### MATERIALS AND METHODS

For the purpose of completeness, the study invoved a survey of students of our English-language program. On the first year of study, we had 11 students, on the second -11, in the total of 22. The standard deviation (SD) was calculated by the formula (1) Sample Standard Deviation:

$$s = \sqrt{\frac{1}{N-1} \sum_{i=1}^{N} (x_i - \overline{x})^2}$$
 (1)

where: x is the sample average AVERAGE VALUE (number 1, number 2, ...), and n is the sampling size (22 students). SD = 8.08. The median for the sample was 11, 5. The mode of a data set (the number that occurs most frequently in the set) is 17.

The equation (2) for VARP was:

$$\sum (x - \overline{x})^2 \frac{1}{n}, \quad (2)$$

where: n is the sample size. VARP = 6.25.

Students of the English-language project study were in two groups: 106 (first year) and 206 (2nd year). The research was carried out in the first and second semesters of the 2019 school year. The survey was conducted after the session in the first semester (in the middle of the study). As an objective criterion, data about academic success of students of 106 and 206 groups (English-language project, experimental group) and other groups of the first and second courses were used. The average age of students was 17 years. Among students, 70% are males, 30% are females. All except one student are citizens of Ukraine (95.5%) and previously did not study in other universities (95.5%). Most students chose the Law Faculty of NAU through an English-language program (80%).

In order to understand the effectiveness of teaching, the reporting data on the consolidated success of students of English and Ukrainian-speaking groups was used. It is worth noting that in Ukraine to assess the current performance of students during the semester, a 5-point system was used, where 2 is the worst score and 5 is an excellent result. For the final assessment, the pan-European ECTS scale is used. For the first semester, the average success rate of the judges of the 106 groups of subjects in the criminal law cycle was 4.2 (the average success of the judges of 101-105 groups was 4.1); for the second semester -4.27 (the average success of the judges of 101-105 groups was 4.15). During the first semester, the average success rate of the judges of the 206 groups of subjects in the criminal law cycle was 4.3 (the average success of the judges of 101-105 groups was 4.25); for the second semester – 4.31 (the average success of the judges of 101-105 groups was 4.21). The data indicate the overall effectiveness of the methods used and the overall good level of knowledge of students of the English-language project. During the study, we used a questionnaire to identify students' attitudes towards the use of the special courses.

Anonymous questionnaire included 4 open and 5 closed questions. Closed questions related to gender, age, group, course, etc. The open questions were as follows: Did you like the course? If yes, what particularly did you like about it? What difficulties did you have in learning the course? Why did you choose NAU? Where do you plan to work in the future?

The anonymous student survey showed the following trends. All except one student are citizens of Ukraine, and previously did not study in other universities. Most students liked the course (95%). The main difficulty is the need to use a large number of heterogeneous sources (65 %).

Most students chose the Law Faculty of NAU through an English-language program (70%), on the advice of parents (20%); could not answer 10%. At the same time, most students in the future see themselves as employees of international law firms or barristers (65 %). However, some students see themselves as judges (10%), prosecutors (10%) and politicians (10%) in the future; could not answer 5%.

As the research results show, most students of the English-language program of the Law Faculty of NAU are Ukrainian citizens who want to combine -studying of Law and English language. These are young people under 20 years of age.

To achieve the purpose of the research the complex methods were used:

- •1. Theoretical methods: analysis, synthesis, systematization and generalization of scientific data contained in pedagogical, philosophical and methodological literature, legal acts in the field of higher education to determine the state of the research problem and identify the pedagogical conditions of teaching criminal legal disciplines in English (curriculum, plans, tutorials, textbooks, audio-and video materials, etc); interdisciplinary synthesis; systematisation of theoretical data, etc; generalisation of pedagogical experience for making conclusions and recommendations for the efficient use in classroom, etc.
- 2. *Empirical methods:* tests, interviews, surveys of students and teachers for primary empirical research.

While researching the use of different methods in teaching legal disciplines in a foreign language, which is not the official language of the state, a set of methods was used: (a) *theoretical methods:* a systematic and comparative analysis of psychological and pedagogical, methodical, scientific literature on the research issues; an analysis of existing teaching materials used to train future lawyers (curriculum, plans, tutorials, textbooks, audio- and video materials, etc); interdisciplinary synthesis; systematization of theoretical data, etc.; generalization of pedagogical experience for making conclusions and recommendations for the efficient use etc.; (b) *empirical methods:* tests, questionnaires, interviews, participant observation in the educational process, etc.

The research was held on the basis of the National Aviation University and enrolled 22 undergraduate students majoring in "Jurisprudence". The pedagogical experiment was conducted in two stages. At the first stage, we aimed at determining the state of the problem by using tests, questionnaires and interviews as well as analysing documentation, teaching materials and methods, considering the results of final tests, credits, examinations, etc. The analysis of the results showed generally good English communication skills for the effective professional activity and revealed its causes: sufficient English level of the first-year students after school; generally good knowledge of specialized subjects; in general, sufficient amount of hours for classroom work; lack of ICT in teaching, etc. The main reason for such a generally good situation with foreign language proficiency is the strict selection of admissions when enrolling in the English-language project and the small number of students in the group (11 persons), which allows the teacher to pay more attention to the student.

The introduction of reasonable pedagogical conditions to improve students' English language proficiency and general legal skills in the system of higher legal education and stimulate them for lifelong learning involved the implementation of the second (formative) stage of the experiment: (1) enhancing students' internal motivation to intellectual activity and further self-education; (2) content and language integrated learning (CLIL), and (3) developing and implementing multilevel tasks in the educational process using ICT. To determine the level of students' motivation, we used the survey method (including questionnaires, interviews with students). We developed a multilevel complex of exercises based on using case-study method, brainstorming and discussions. At this stage, two groups were formed: an experimental group (EG) included 22 first and second-year students and a control

group (CG) included the same number of students majoring in "Jurisprudence" who study full-time (135 first-year students with Ukrainian language learning and 120 second-year students with Ukrainian language learning). Other conditions for both groups were approximately the same: the higher educational institution; topics of the syllabus and hours for classroom study and self-study, etc.

#### RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

The research was carried out to examine how students perceive the implementation of studying legal disciplines in a foreign language, which is not the official language of the state. The first is the need to increase the number of foreign students. The second is the need for national lawyers who can work with in-house counterparts.

At the same time, the curriculum for students with Ukrainian and English language instruction contains the same number of academic hours. It concerns simultaneously at the same time philology, pedagogy and law.

However, the analysis of previous research on the problem has shown that still there is a research gap in studying legal disciplines in a foreign language, which is not the official language of the state.

We have developed a practical tool that combines philological, pedagogical, and law techniques. It is based on literature from all three directions. At the current level of international cooperation and economic development, English language knowledge comes to the forefront of a lawyer. It cannot always be regarded as a separate competence, but it becomes a basic component of the legal profession.

The first one is the need to develop a very large number of training programs. These programs are quite complicated for a number of reasons. These programs should be integrated.

They should contain the basic theoretical provisions of national science and practice and comparison with English-speaking countries and terminology explanation. At the same time, they must as a whole be consistent with programs of non-integrated nature, at least by the number of training hours.

Therefore, the National Aviation University, among the faculties where the English language teaching program was introduced, was chosen a legal department.

Therefore, the English-language teaching program among other faculties of National Aviation University has been chosen for the introduction and development by the Faculty of Law too. There are first and second-year students in English-language groups. The quantity of the students in every group is about 11. Unfortunately, the NAU has not gotten yet an accredited English-language Master's degree in law. Today, the department provides teaching of the following courses: "Organization of Judicial and Law Enforcement Bodies", "Prosecution of Ukraine" and "Criminal law". Today, Criminal Law and Process Department provides teaching of the following courses: "Organization of Judicial and Law Enforcement Bodies", "Prosecution of Ukraine" and "Criminal law". In the future, the department also plans to teach such courses as: "Preparation of Notaries Procedural Documents", "Prosecutor's Supervision", "Advocacy and Notary Service in Ukraine", "Comparative Criminal Law", "Problems of Criminal and Legal

Protection of Human and Citizen Rights". The goal of teaching "Criminal Law" is mastering theoretical knowledge in the field of criminal law and strengthening of practical skills to apply them in specific situations, the formation of legal culture in the practical application of the criminal law. The tasks of studying the discipline are: study of legislative and other normative legal acts regulating legal relations in the field of crime and punishment, studying the basic institutions and concepts of criminal law, skills acquisition of theoretical knowledge in practice.

As an example, all modules include: reading activity; language in use; a glossary; a forum, and a quiz. This system has a wide range of components; the decision to use any of them was made when a particular course was being studied. This provides flexibility possibility to start using the system from any component (e.g., a forum, a glossary, a lesson, etc.) but gradually add other components. Fernando and Perez (2018) highlighted the next types of training activities accepted under the obligations of continuous or specialization training for law students: Attending face to face training sessions, Completing distance training sessions, Completing e-learning modules, Watching a webinar, Completing blended learning activities, Attending training conferences, Participating in training activities as trainer or teacher, Writing and Publishing.

With this view, you can fully agree. Approximately, the assessment of skills and knowledge of students in the curricula of the National Aviation University was carried out. The analysis of the responses in the questionnaire with open-ended questions revealed that students had positive perceptions:

- – the students were enthusiastic about learning and had a strong motivational component;
- •-respondents could apply the acquired knowledge in more effective manner (operational component);
- •-students developing presentation skills (organizational and technological component), and
- •-participants worked together to achieve their common goals (social and personality component).

In fact, students learn more effectively when they are actively engaged in classroom activities and self-study process by having discussions, interacting with peers and teachers, analyzing and critically evaluating information. These skills are highly required for their future professional activity. Moreover, the best combination of teaching, philological, foreign criminal law and domestic legal sources in the process of teaching is combined. Studying according to an English-speaking program requires knowledge of legal disciplines, knowledge of legal terminology and a high level of English language proficiency.

While the teaching of Criminal Law cycle subjects has a significant specificity. First of all, this is a problem with textbooks for teaching. At the same time, there is a fundamentally different understanding of the basic provisions of Criminal Law in Ukraine and the Anglo-Saxon countries. This can be shown on the example of complicity. In Ukraine, an organizer, an abettor and an accessory, together with a principal offender, are deemed to be accomplices in a criminal offence. In common law system, the following terms are used: principal in the First Degree; principal

in the Second Degree; accessory before the fact; accessory after the fact. It is necessary to combine these two approaches within one lecture.

In this case, English-language vocabulary will be suitable only for the system of common law. For an adequate translation into the Ukrainian language, further amendments and clarifications are needed. The main reason for this is that the phenomena that need to be described in terms are not available in English-speaking countries as such.

Another problem is that English is an official language in more than 30 countries. All these countries have different legal regulations. They also use different vocabulary and terms. An example of such plurality of terms may be the term "Prosecutor General of Ukraine". According to the site, it is the official name of the position in Ukraine. At the same time, foreign lawmakers use the following terms as a synonym: Prosecutor-General, Judge Advocate General, Attorney-General, Director of Public Prosecutions, and Chief State Prosecutor. As for other terms, more synonyms can be used.

Davies (2018) indicated that "For legal academia there is no equivalent formal qualifying route, as there is no professional body akin to the Bar Standards Board (BSB) or SRA to set a minimum standard. What is required is entirely dependent upon what individual employing universities look for. From the perspective of accessibility, the purpose of this section is to consider whether, in the absence of a formally defined qualification route for academic 'professional' status, there has been an increase over time in the amount of time and money prospective academics have to invest in their education and training to secure the chance to realistically compete for a position in a university law school".

The lecturer uses three types of materials in preparation for the lecture: terminology textbooks; textbooks on the subject in English and textbooks published in Ukraine and domestic laws.

Terminology textbooks in the field of jurisprudence have their own specifics. Among the most used can be highlighted "English for Legal Professionals" (Frost 2009), "Career Paths: Law" (Evans et al. 2015) and *Introduction to International Legal English* (Krois-Linder 2009). Only one of them – "Career Paths: Law" (Evans et al. 2015) has a little article about Criminal Law. Other textbooks have a pronounced civil law deviation. They do not have sections about the criminal legal terminology.

Fletcher (2007) used systematic emphasis on the relationship between language and legal theory; there is no comparable comparative study of legal language. Therefore, it is basically necessary to use interpretive dictionaries (Hughes 2004) and special systems such as multitran for the proper use of the terminology.

Textbooks on the subject in English. Because of differences in theoretical approaches, the basics are comparative criminal law textbooks. Dubber and Hernle (2014) examined the language barrier in the context of Criminal Law.

Textbooks published in Ukraine and domestic laws mostly unacceptable in English. There are also no integrated textbooks that outline Ukrainian approaches in comparison with the approaches of the English-speaking countries. Therefore,

preparing for lectures, the teacher is forced to translate enormous amount of information.

To search for legislation in English, we use the Sherlock database (Sharing Electronic Resources and Laws on Crime 2019). However, only about 28 acts are available for Ukraine (Criminal Code of the Republic of Ukraine, Law on the Protection of Archeological Heritage, Criminal Procedure Code of the Republic of Ukraine, Law of Ukraine on combating organized crime).

However, even in existing translations of legislative acts, there are no recent changes. For example, the Criminal Code of Ukraine is available in 2001 edition. A teacher should keep track of all the changes, translate them and bring them to the attention of the students on their own. However, most acts, for example, the Law of Ukraine "About Prosecutor's Office" also have to be translated. Therefore, the main source of information is lectures, prepared by a teacher him/herself.

At the same time, we are trying to implement modern methods for practical classes. Practical training goes in two directions. It is important for a future lawyer to consolidate the theoretical knowledge during seminars, discussion debates, and be able to solve specific cases.

Qi (2018) emphasized that "The emergence of e-learning created new education and diverse environment, conforming to the rapid change in modern society. The high acquisition characteristic breaks through the restrictions to time and space of traditional teaching, and the international emphasis on the problem and development of intellectual property is thoroughly presented on various international conferences and international conventions. The practice on education promotion could enhance the understanding of intellectual property and present the mission to practice intellectual property law, i.e. effectively transforming learners to further enhance the concept of intellectual property" (Qi 2018).

In this case, not only domestic examples from judicial practice, but also foreign countries are used. Problem solving is based largely on real examples of practice. At that, the decision often takes place in two versions – according to the Ukrainian legislation and the American one. The curriculum for the number of hours and issues that are recommended for study is broadly identical to the Ukrainian-language and English-speaking groups. Since the use of both Ukrainian and foreign textbooks is possible in different proportions, different ratios of these sources were used during the experiment. During personal communication with students, it was discovered that the best model was the use of national legislation in the translation of a foreign language, foreign sources and philological literature in the following proportion: national legislation in the translation of a foreign language –80%; foreign sources – 15%; philological literature –5% (with an obligatory representation of the glossary at the end of the lecture).

At the same time, the use of real cases from Ukrainian and foreign practices did not show any particular differences (since one and the same situation can be solved from the standpoint of different legal systems), they are used in the ratio of 50/50.

### CONCLUSION

The necessity and efficiency of using four types of sources for the training of the teacher to the classes have been confirmed. They are terminology textbooks; textbooks on the subject in English and textbooks published in Ukraine and domestic laws. Studying according to an English-speaking program requires knowledge of legal disciplines, knowledge of legal terminology and a high level of English language proficiency. The results of the experiment prove that students increase their professional competence that positively influences their future professional development and knowledge of a foreign language. Most students liked the course (95%). The main difficulty is the need to use a large number of heterogeneous sources (65%). Most students chose the Law Faculty of NAU through an English-language program (70%), on the advice of parents (20%), and could not answer 10%. At the same time, most students in the future see themselves as employees of international law firms or barristers (65%). However, some students see themselves as judges (10%), prosecutors (10%), politicians (10%) in the future and could not answer 5%

## RECOMMENDATION

During personal communication with students, it was discovered that the best model was the use of national legislation in the translation of a foreign language, foreign sources and philological literature in the following proportion: national legislation in the translation of a foreign language –80%; foreign sources –15% and philological literature –5% (with an obligatory representation of the glossary at the end of the lecture). At the same time, the use of real cases from Ukrainian and foreign practices did not show any particular differences (since one and the same situation can be solved from the standpoint of different legal systems), they are used in the ratio of 50/50. The introduction of modern methods of practical classes and the use of multimedia is also pleasing to students and helps to increase the level of proficiency.

### LITERATURE CITED

- Al-Qatawneh, S.M. and O.M. Al-Qatawneh. 2018. Exploring the use of light and colour to detract and enhance the plot of 3D rendered scenes. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 4(1): 74-94.
- Annamalah, S., M. Raman, G. Marthandan, A.K. Logeswaran. 2016. Acceptance of open innovation model in Malaysian SMIs. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 2(4): 68-84.
- Bhattacharyya, R. 2018. # metoo movement: An awareness campaign. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(4): 1-12.
- Boon, H.J., S. Kimhi, K. Sapountzaki, S. Ryan and A. Groh. 2017. Preliminary findings from an international study of subjective wellbeing in tertiary students. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(3): 26-42.
- Brooman, S. 2017. Creatures, the Academic Lawyer and a Socio-Legal Approach: Introducing Animal Law into the Legal Education Curriculum. Liverpool Law Review 38: 243-257.
- Campbell, K. and B. Narayan. 2017. First-generation tertiary students: Access is not the same as support. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(3): 43-60.

- Carter, M.-A. 2018. Ways forward in mental health innovation, prevention and promotion: Voices from the field. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 4(3): 1-2.
- Carter, M.A. and A. Francis. 2016. Responding to changing landscapes in social work education in mental health: Possible ways forward. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 2(3): 83-95.
- Carter, M.A. and D. Goldie. 2017. Educational media: Potential impacts on tertiary students' mental health. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(3): 61-88.
- Carter, M.-A. and D. Goldie. 2018. Potential enablers of mental health and wellness for those teaching in tertiary education. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 4(3): 3-20.
- Carter, M.A., P. Pagliano, A. Francis and M. Thorne. 2017. Australian university students and mental health: Viewpoints from the literature. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(3): 1-25.
- Chougule, M.P. 2018. Empowering youth through youth engagement in social action in India. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 4(1): 16-28.
- Colgan, D., W. Domingo and H. Papcostantis. 2017. Change to a Skills-Based LLB Curriculum: A Qualitative Study of Participants in a Family Law Course. Available at: https://www.researchgate.net/publication/322698232\_Change\_to\_a\_Skills-Based\_LLB\_Curriculum\_A\_Qualitative\_Study\_of\_Participants\_in\_a\_Family\_Law\_Course (Accessed date 15.08.2019)
- Coyle, D., P. Hood and D. Marsh. 2010. *Content and Language Integrated Learning*. Cambridge University Press, Cambridge, England, UK, 189 p.
- Daniel, R. 2018. Motivation to be an Artist: Insights relevant to mental health. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 4(3): 21-32.
- Daniel, R. and R. Johnstone. 2017. A preliminary exploration of frameworks for building artists' resilience. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(3): 89-104.
- Davies, M. 2018. Educational background and access to legal academia. Legal Studies 38: 120–146.
- Dhakal, R.K. and B.P. Pant. 2016. Assessment of teacher education curricula in Nepal: An ICT perspective. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 2(3): 96-107.
- Doe, T. 2016. Full steam ahead. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 2(3): 136-149.
- Doe, T., P. Fradale, D. Lynch, C. Quinn and K. Sell. 2017. Unpacking the effective school leader. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(1): 39-54.
- Dubber, M. and T. Hernle. 2014. *Criminal Law: A Comparative Approach*. Oxford University Press, Oxford, England, UK, 51 p.
- Elisondo, R.C. 2018. Serious leisure, self-perceptions and everyday creativity. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 4(1): 52-73.
- Eshun, E.F. and K. Amoako-Agyeman. 2016. Measuring creativity with divergent thinking tasks: Communication design students' experience. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 2(4): 122-155.
- Eshun, E.F., A. Mohammed and E. Appiah. 2018. Exploring the impact of pedagogical strategies in drawing instruction on drawing skills satisfaction: A case study on Ghanaian communication design students. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 4(2): 104-122.
- Evans, V., J. Dooley and D.J. Smith. 2015. *Career Paths: Law*. Express Publishing, Berkshire, England, UK, 58 p.
- Fernando, L. and H. Perez 2018. The law teaching system and the access to legal professions in Germany: lessons for debate in Mexico. Boletin Mexicano de Derecho Comparado 151: 263-311.

## Semchuk, Lykhova & Demianenko 2019

- Fletcher, G. 2007. *The Grammar of Criminal Law: American, Comparative and International*. Oxford University Press, Oxford, Englad, UK, 72 p.
- Frederico, M., M. Long and J. Young. 2018. Educating social workers for leadership in a highly differentiated society. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(4): 61-72.
- Frost, A. 2009. English for Legal Professionals. Express Series, Oxford, England, UK, 163 p.
- Garrigan, M. 2017. Leading learners: A view from the trenches. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(1): 13-25.
- Hawkins, R. and S.C. McWaters. 2018. Asylum seekers prejudice: Tertiary education, the media, and the government. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(4): 13-29.
- Hawkins, R.M.F., H. Newitt, M. Piat and N. Pfeiffer. 2017. Mental health in Australian (North Queensland) tertiary students. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(3): 105-123.
- Hazat, S.O. 2018. Assessment of the basic law lesson consistent with the opinions of social studies pre-service teachers. International Journal of Higher Education 7: 103-110.
- Herbert, A. 2017. Closing the rhetoric reality gap: Effectively implementing engagement and wellbeing policies in Queensland State Secondary Schools. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(3): 124-139.
- Himonga, C. and F. Diallo. 2017. Decolonisation and teaching law in Africa with special reference to living customary law. Available at https://www.researchgate.net/publication/320733667\_Decolonisation\_and\_Teaching\_Law\_in\_Africa\_with\_Special\_Reference to Living Customary Law (Accessed date 15.08.2019)
- Hughes, H. 2004. Oxford dictionary of English. Reference Reviews 18(4). Available at https://doi.org/10.1108/09504120410535407 (Accessed date 14.08.2019)
- Jiang, L. and R. Smith. 2017. Teaching in Australia: Chinese university teachers talk about how they found teaching jobs in Australia. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(1): 26-38.
- Jun Ping, W.A.N.G. 2012. The definition of some notions concerning on legal experiment teaching and their application. Journal of Higher Education 9: 69-73.
- Kamel, A. and M.K. Watfa. 2018. Disruption-based innovations for incumbent technology businesses. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 4(2): 20-50.
- Kampel, L., J. Orman and B. O'Dea. 2017. E-mental health for psychological distress in University students: A narrative synthesis on current evidence and practice. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(3): 140-152.
- Knezovic, E. and M.A. Musrati. 2018. Empowering leadership, psychological empowerment and employees' creativity: A gender perspective. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 4(2): 51-72.
- Knight, B.A. and S.A. Galletly. 2017. Effective literacy instruction for all students: A time for change. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(1): 65-86.
- Krois-Linder, A. 2009. *Introduction to International Legal English*. Cambridge University Press, Cambridge, England, UK, 84 p.
- Le, T.T. and S. Chen. 2018. Teaching cultures in English as International Language (EIL): A political model for Asia-Pacific countries. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(4): 120-143.
- Li, N. 2018. Research on the correlation between law teaching reform and students' academic performance based on regression analysis method. Educational Sciences: Theory and Practice 18: 1620-1627.

- Lynch, D. and J. Madden. 2017. Towards the teaching school: Partnering to create an exciting new future in teacher education. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(2): 115-130.
- Lynch, D. and R. Smith. 2016a. Building school readiness for teaching improvement: The first step. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 2(4): 103-121.
- Lynch, D. and R. Smith. 2016b. Readiness for school reform. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 2(3): 1-12.
- Lynch, D., P. Fradale, K. Sell, D. Turner and T. Yeigh. 2018. Towards an effective model for whole of school blended learning: A conceptual paper. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 4(1): 32-51.
- Lynch, D., R. Smith and I. Menter. 2016. Reforming teacher education: From 'partnership to 'syndication'. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 2(3): 27-40.
- Lynch, D., R. Smith, S. Provost, T. Yeigh and D. Turner. 2017. The correlation between 'teacher readiness' and student learning improvement. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(1): 1-12.
- Madden, J. 2017a. Building the future school. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(1): 87-96.
- Madden, J. 2017b. Four pillars to building a positive school culture. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(2): 33-38.
- McAuliffe, M. 2016. The potential benefits of divergent thinking and metacognitive skills in STEAM learning: A discussion paper. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 2(3): 71-82.
- McWaters, S.C. and R. Hawkins. 2018. The Imagined Contact Hypothesis: Prejudice towards asylum seekers in Australia. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(4): 106-119.
- Millear, P.M.R. 2016. Humour: A platform for blended learning in mental health promotion. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 2(3): 41-56.
- Moir, F., J. Yielder, H. Dixon and S. Hawken. 2018. SAFE-DRS: Health and wellbeing in the curriculum in the Auckland Medical Programme. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 4(3): 49-64.
- Mukhopadhyay, T.P. and B.N. Saha. 2017. Digital diversions in education: Interactive multimedia for adolescent motivation in unilateral classroom scenarios. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(2): 60-74.
- Mungai, N. 2018. Transcultural issues in regional settlement of refugees. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(4): 90-105.
- Muñoz-Blanco, M.I. and M.A.P. Vargas. 2017. Respondent conditioning training effect on the behavior of the audience of creativity. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(2): 18-32.
- Narayan, B. 2018. Using a co-experience approach to improve international students' classroom experience: A practice report from within an Australian higher education setting. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 4(3): 81-97.
- Novitasari, Y. and S. Yusuf. 2018. Development of creative personality inventory (CPI): Hypothetical concept. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 4(2): 176-192.
- Nuhayatie, T. 2018. The development model of exploitability knowledge based on entrepreneurial learning to innovative performance and sustainable competitive advantage. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 4(2): 123-133.
- O'Brien, C. and C. Adam. 2016a. Sustainable happiness, Living Campus, and wellbeing for all. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 2(4): 85-102.

## Semchuk, Lykhova & Demianenko 2019

- O'Brien, C. and C. Adam. 2016b. Sustainable happiness, living campus, and wellbeing for all. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 2(3): 57-70.
- Ojha, L.K. 2016. Using I.C.T. in chemistry education. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 2(4): 156-164.
- Parker, T. 2017. Employment trends in counselling Australia 2015/2016. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(3): 173-196.
- Pearson, S.W. and V.S. Athota. 2018. Academic contrapower harassment (ACPH), and pedagogy for mental health through self-compassion: A conceptual paper. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 4(3): 65-80.
- Peel, R., N. Caltabiano, B. Buckby and K. McBain. 2018. Mental health diagnoses and relationship breakdown: Which is the chicken and which the egg? International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 4(3): 98-116.
- Pendery, D. 2017. Razzle-dazzle and Razz-ma-tazz: A report into creative writing in a Taipei University. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(1): 105-140.
- Petrosyan, A.E. 2016a. A straight-jacket for conceptual breakthroughs: The appraisal in science as a brake on the progress of knowledge: Part II. What to do to get out of the impasse of neophobia. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 2(4): 28-67.
- Petrosyan, A.E. 2016b. A straight-jacket for conceptual breakthroughs: (The appraisal in science as a brake on the progress of knowledge): I. Why new ideas get dashed to pieces on the rocks of evaluation. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 2(3): 108-135.
- Petrovic, K. 2016. A case study on nursing student involvement in social justice week: Reported findings on this innovative method. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 2(4): 1-5.
- Prior, R.W. 2018. Art-led communitas for developing improved mental health in higher education in a time of rapid change. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 4(3): 125-141.
- Pulla, V. 2017. Strengths-based approach in social work: A distinct ethical advantage. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(2): 97-114.
- Pulla, V. 2018. Educating students to work with diverse communities Building reflexive practice. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(4): 144-176.
- Pulla, V., R. Baikady and R.M. Channaveer. 2017. Social work students' perceptions of peace and social justice. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(1): 87-104.
- Qi, A. 2018. A study of the effect of implementing intellectual property education with digital teaching on learning motivation and achievements. Eurasia Journal of Mathematics, Science and Technology Education 14: 2445-2452.
- Ramkumar, A. and G. Rajini. 2018a. Innovative human resource practices and selected H.R. outcomes in software firms. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 4(2): 134-157.
- Ramkumar, A. and G. Rajini. 2018b. Personality and success level prediction of individuals using soft skills measures and its performance evaluation. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 4(1): 112-131.
- Ranatunga, J.B. and P.J. Pagliano. 2017. Wellbeing research in education: A critical realist perspective. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(3): 153-172.
- Salim, N.N. 2018. Interrogating gender dynamics in the context of indigenous and innovative Social Work practice in Kenya. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(4): 30-60.

- Schoeneman, A.C. and J.M. Sawyer. 2016. Exploring the use and perception of creativity in community organizing. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 2(4): 6-27.
- Sellars, M. 2017. Numeracy across the curriculum A pathway to critical thinking. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(2): 75-83.
- Sharing electronic resources and laws on crime. 2019. Available at https://sherloc.unodc.org/cld/about-us/index.html?lng=en (Accessed date 17.08.2019)
- Sharma, A. 2018. Identity, ethnicity and school education: An institutional ethnography of schools in Assam. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(4): 73-89.
- Siddins, E. 2018. Paving the way for unique wellbeing intervention in visual art curricula. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 4(3): 33-48.
- Smith, R. 2016. Technology and education. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 2(3): 13-26.
- Stavytska, I.V. 2017. The formation of foreign language competence of engineering students by means of multimedia. Advanced Education 7: 123-128.
- Strydom, A. 2017. The effect of virtual learning environments in an ESL classroom: A case study. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(2): 49-59.
- Swaroop, P. and V. Dixit. 2018. Employee engagement, work autonomy and innovative work behaviour: An empirical study. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 4(2): 158-176.
- Tahirsylaj, A., B. Mann and J. Matson. 2018. Teaching creativity at scale: Overcoming language barriers in a MOOC. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 4(2): 1-19.
- Tejani, R. 2018. A working-class profession: Opportunism and diversity in U.S. law. Dialect Anthropology 42: 131-148.
- Trevallion, D. 2018. The changing professional identity of pre-service technology education students. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 4(1): 1-15.
- Vansover, Y. 2016. Because a lesson is a kind of performance. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 2(4): 165-171.
- Vansover, Y. 2017. Learning is fun, you can really hear it: Teacher training and chopin's etudes. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(2): 1-17.
- Vansover, Y. 2018. Dvořák, who had the time for remembrance of things past. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 4(1): 95-111.
- Venkateswaran, C. and A.S. Vincent. 2018. A community model of mental health promotion Its relevance in education The story of MEHAC in India. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 4(3): 117-124.
- Vinnichenko, O. and E. Gladun. 2018. Legal Education in the BRICS Countries in the Context of Globalization: A Comparative Analysis. BRICS Law Journal 5(3): 4-39.
- Wagner, D.L. 2017. Mixing methods: Creative collaboration in mobile moviemaking. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(2): 84-96.
- Wellham, D. 2016. A case study into learning that is additional to the classroom. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 2(4): 172-193.
- Whiting, P. 2017. Design thinking: The search for innovation, creativity & change. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 3(1): 55-64.
- Willis, R.L., D. Lynch and P. Fradale. 2018. Operationalizing Blended Learning to the context: Towards clarity in implementation. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 4(2): 73-89.
- Wu, M., I. Siswanto and T. Mahfud. 2018. The Role of cognitive and affective behavior in predicting the creative thinking of university students. International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change 4(2): 90-103.

## Semchuk, Lykhova & Demianenko 2019

Yu, S.H., M. Zia-ud-Din, R.D. Khan and S. Bilal. 2018. Cross-national comparative study on legal education and admission to practice between China, India and Pakistan. Journal of Legal Studies 21: 16-37.



Asia Life Sciences has an Impact Factor of 0.180

The papers published in *Asia Life Sciences* are indexed/covered by SCOPUS, Elsevier B.V., Radarweg 29, 1043 NX, Amsterdam, The Netherlands; CABI, Wallingford, Oxon, UK; China National Knowledge Infrastructure (CNKI), 66 Xixiaokou Avenue, Haidian District, Beijing, China; J-Gate, Informatics Publishing Limited, No. 194, RV Road, Basavanagudi, Bangalore-560004, Karnataka, India and EBSCO Publishing, Inc., 10 Estes Street, Ipswich, Massachusetts, 01938-0682, USA.

Asia Life Sciences is a recipient of the Journal Accreditation Award of the Commission on Higher Education (CHED), Republic of the Philippines (2010-2016).

Printed on acid-free papers



Asia Life Sciences has an Impact Factor of 0.180

The papers published in *Asia Life Sciences* are indexed/covered by SCOPUS, Elsevier B.V., Radarweg 29, 1043 NX, Amsterdam, The Netherlands; CABI, Wallingford, Oxon, UK; China National Knowledge Infrastructure (CNKI), 66 Xixiaokou Avenue, Haidian District, Beijing, China; J-Gate, Informatics Publishing Limited, No. 194, RV Road, Basavanagudi, Bangalore-560004, Karnataka, India and EBSCO Publishing, Inc., 10 Estes Street, Ipswich, Massachusetts, 01938-0682, USA.

Asia Life Sciences is a recipient of the Journal Accreditation Award of the Commission on Higher Education (CHED), Republic of the Philippines (2010-2016).

Printed on acid-free papers

# ASIA LIFE SCIENCES Supplement 21(2): 993-998, 2019 The Asian International Journal of Life Sciences

# REVIEWERS - ASIA LIFE SCIENCES Supplement 21, Number 2, 2019\*

# Social & Legal Changes for Sustainable Development: Trends, Issues & Effective Solutions

## **GLEN ADAMS**

Professor Department of Biological Sciences & Geology Queensborough Community College 222-05 56th Avenue Bayside, NY 11364, USA

### STEVEN BAKER

Professor
Department of Geography, Environmental Management and Energy Studies
University of Johannesburg
PO Box 524
Auckland Park 2006
SOUTH AFRICA

### SAM BECKLES

Professor
Department of Geography and Environment
Loughborough University
Epinal Way, Loughborough
Leicestershire LE11 3TU, UK

<sup>\*</sup>Disclaimer: The use of trade names in this publication does not imply endorsement or criticism of the products named.

## ASIA LIFE SCIENCES The Asian International Journal of

Life Sciences ISSN 0117-3375 Beyond Excellence©

#### JESSE BERNARD

Senior Researcher
Department of Agricultural, Food & Nutritional Science
University of Alberta
116 St. and 85 Ave.
Edmonton, AB
CANADA

#### DEREK BROWN

Professor Marieb College of Health & Human Services Florida Gulf Coast University 10501 FGCU Blvd S Fort Myers, FL 33965 USA

#### GREGORY COOPER

Professor Department of Biological Sciences University of Calgary 2500 University Drive NW Calgary, AB T2N 1N4 CANADA

#### JANKO DIACI

Professor Faculty of Natural Sciences and Engineering University of Ljubljana Kongresni trg 12 Ljubljana 1000 SLOVENIA

#### HEIDI EKLUND

Associate Professor Department of Biology University of Turku FI-20014 Turun yliopisto, Turku FINLAND

## Reviewers - Asia Life Sciences Supplement 21(2) 2019

#### **OLUF FINSEN**

Professor Department of Biological Sciences University of Copenhagen Nørregade 10, Postboks 2177 Copenhagen DK-1017 DENMARK

#### **TONY HIGGINS**

Senior Researcher Department of Biology Western Kentucky University 1906 College Heights Blvd, Bowling Green, KY 42101 USA

### ANNA LACZKOVICH

Associate Professor Institute of Chemistry Eötvös Loránd University (ELTE) Egyetem tér 1-3, Budapest 1053 HUNGARY

#### RITTA LAHTERO

Professor Faculty of Biological and Environmental Sciences University of Helsinki 3 Yliopistonkatu Helsinki 00014 FINLAND

#### LADISLAV LAJCAK

Senior Researcher Department of Environmental Ecology Comenius University in Bratislava Šafárikovo námestie 6 Bratislava 814 99 SLOVAKIA

# ASIA LIFE SCIENCES The Asian International Journal of

Life Sciences ISSN 0117-3375 Beyond Excellence©

### VIZMA LANGA

Senior Researcher
Department of Ecological Sciences
University of Latvia
Raina bulvaris 19, Centra rajons
Riga, LV-1586
LATVIA

#### MARTIN LEOD

Associate Professor Department of Biomedical Molecular Biology Ghent University St. Pietersnieuwstraat 33 Ghent 9000 BELGIUM

#### **INEZ LINDE**

Professor Faculty of Geosciences Utrecht University Domplein 29, 3512 JE Utrecht NETHERLANDS

#### HENRIK OLESEN

Associate Professor Department of Biological Sciences University of Copenhagen Nørregade 10, Postboks 2177 Copenhagen DK-1017 DENMARK

#### LARS OUSLAND

Associate Professor Department of Chemistry University of Oslo Problemveien 7, Oslo 0315 NORWAY

## Reviewers - Asia Life Sciences Supplement 21(2) 2019

#### KIM PATTERSON

Senior Researcher
Department of Life Sciences
University of the West Indies at Mona
P.O. Box 113
Kingston 7, Mona
JAMAICA

#### RYAN PAXTON

Professor Department of Health Sciences Lakehead University 955 Oliver Rd, Thunder Bay, Ontario, ON P7B 5E1 CANADA

#### IVARS RUBENE

Senior Researcher Department of Ecological Sciences University of Latvia Raina bulvaris 19, Centra rajons Riga, LV-1586 LATVIA

#### DAVID SAVAGE

Senior Researcher UCL School of Life and Medical Sciences London's Global University 17 Gower Street London WC1E 6BT, UK

### DYLAN SIMARD

Professor Faculty of Health Sciences McMaster University 1280 Main St W, Hamilton, ON L8S 4L8, CANADA

#### ASIA LIFE SCIENCES The Asian International Journal of

Life Sciences ISSN 0117-3375 Beyond Excellence©

#### **SHEN SUI**

Senior Researcher
School of Life Sciences
Chinese University of Hong Kong
Shatin, NT, Hong Kong SAR
THE PEOPLE'S REPUBLIC OF CHINA

#### JEROEN VANDEN WALLE

Senior Researcher Laboratory of Medical Biochemistry and Clinical Analysis Ghent University St. Pietersnieuwstraat 33 Gent 9000 BELGIUM

#### TARJA WALTARI

Professor
Faculty of Biological and Environmental Sciences
University of Helsinki
3 Yliopistonkatu
Helsinki 00014
FINLAND

#### DAVID T. WAYNE

Professor Faculty of Land and Food Systems The University of British Columbia 2329 West Mall BC V6T 1Z4 Vancouver CANADA

# Actual Date of Publication: *Asia Life Sciences* Supplement 21(2) 2019 - 28 December 2019

©Rushing Water Publishers Ltd., Philippines 2019

ASIA LIFE SCIENCES - The Asian International Journal of Life Sciences (ISSN 0117-3375) is a non-profit, non-stock, refereed/peer-reviewed (double-blind review), international, scientific journal devoted to the publication of original research in the Life Sciences and other disciplines. Articles originating from anywhere in the world are most welcome.

Two issues a year make a volume.

#### BOARD OF EDITORS-Asia Life Sciences Supplement 21(2) 2019

Chairman & Chief Editor: Dr. William Sm. Gruèzo, 7288 Santosha Avenue corner Astheya Street, Istana Lovina Bay Park, Puypuy, Bay 4033, Laguna, Philippines. Members: Dr. Yung-Cheol Byun, Department of Computer Engineering, Jeju National University,102 Jejudaehak-ro, Jeju-si, Jeju-do 690-756, South Korea. Dr. Liding Chen, State Key Laboratory of Urban and Regional Ecology. Research Center for Eco-Environmental Sciences, Chinese Academy of Sciences, Shuangqing Road 18, Haidian, Beijing 100085, China. Corpuz-Raros, Institute of Weed Entomology & Plant Pathology, College of Agriculture and Food, University of the Philippines Los Baños (UPLB), College 4031, Laguna. Dr. Maribel L. Dionisio-Sese, Plant Biology Division, Institute of Biological Sciences, College of Arts & Sciences-UPLB, College 4031, Laguna. Dr. Irineo J. Dogma Jr., Graduate School, University of Santo Tomas, España St., Manila. Dr. Agustine I. Doronila, School of Chemistry, University of Melbourne, Victoria 3010, Australia. Dr. Celeste Leiden G. Gruèzo DVM/MA, 7288 Santosha Avenue corner Astheya Street, Istana Lovina Bay Park, Puypuy, Bay 4033, Laguna. **Dr. Rafael D. Guerrero III**, National Academy of Science and Technology, Level 3, Science Heritage Building, Department of Science and Technology Complex, Bicutan, Taguig City, MetroManila. Dr.Mehmet Varol, Muğla Sıtkı Koçman University, Faculty of Science, Department of Molecular Biology and Genetics, Kötekli Campus, 48000, Muğla, Turkey.

#### Technical Production Manager: Ydred Harriss G. Gruèzo, BSA

Deadlines for submission of manuscripts. First issue-01 July; Second issue-01 January. Please contact the Chief Editor/Chairman, ALS Board of Editors (see addresses below). Subscription Prices. Foreign: Institutional - US\$1000; Individual - US\$800 (including Volumes 1-28, 1992-2019 + 21 Supplements). Local: Institutional - PhP10,000; Individual - PhP8000 (including Volumes 1-28, 1992-2019 + 21 Supplements). Prepayment of order/back order is required. All issues are to be sent by air mail. Back orders will have an additional packing-handling and postage cost.

Send manuscripts, subscription orders and correspondence to: Dr. William Sm. Gruèzo, ASIA LIFE SCIENCES, 81 Governor F.T. San Luis Avenue, Masaya, Bay 4033, Laguna, Philippines. e-mails: asialifesciences@yahoo.com wsmgruezo@gmail.com Website: http://emtpub.com/journals/ALS/

# ASIA LIFE SCIENCES The Asian International Journal of Life Sciences ISSN 0117-3375 Beyond Excellence©



Asia Life Sciences has an Impact Factor of 0.180

The papers published in *Asia Life Sciences* are indexed/covered by SCOPUS, Elsevier B.V., Radarweg 29, 1043 NX, Amsterdam, The Netherlands; CABI, Wallingford, Oxon, UK; China National Knowledge Infrastructure (CNKI), 66 Xixiaokou Avenue, Haidian District, Beijing, China; J-Gate, Informatics Publishing Limited, No. 194, RV Road, Basavanagudi, Bangalore-560004, Karnataka, India and EBSCO Publishing, Inc., 10 Estes Street, Ipswich, Massachusetts, 01938-0682, USA.

Asia Life Sciences is a recipient of the Journal Accreditation Award of the Commission on Higher Education (CHED), Republic of the Philippines (2010-2016).

Printed on acid-free papers

Actual Date of Publication: *Asia Life Sciences* Supplement 21(2) 2019 - 28 December 2019

ASIA LIFE SCIENCES - The Asian International Journal of Life Sciences (ISSN 0117-3375) is a non-profit, non-stock, refereed/peer-reviewed (double-blind review), international, scientific journal devoted to the publication of original research in the Life Sciences and other disciplines. Articles originating from anywhere in the world are most welcome.

Two issues a year make a volume.

#### BOARD OF EDITORS-Asia Life Sciences Supplement 21(2) 2019

Chairman & Chief Editor: Dr. William Sm. Gruèzo, 7288 Santosha Avenue corner Astheya Street, Istana Lovina Bay Park, Puypuy, Bay 4033, Laguna, Philippines. Members: Dr. Yung-Cheol Byun, Department of Computer Engineering, Jeju National University,102 Jejudaehak-ro, Jeju-si, Jeju-do 690-756, South Korea. Dr. Liding Chen, State Key Laboratory of Urban and Regional Ecology, Research Center for Eco-Environmental Sciences, Chinese Academy of Sciences, Shuangqing Road 18, Haidian, Beijing 100085, China. Corpuz-Raros, Institute of Weed Entomology & Plant Pathology, College of Agriculture and Food, University of the Philippines Los Baños (UPLB), College 4031, Laguna. Maribel L. Dionisio-Sese, Plant Biology Division, Institute of Biological Sciences, College of Arts & Sciences-UPLB, College 4031, Laguna. Dr. Irineo J. Dogma Jr., Graduate School, University of Santo Tomas, España St., Manila. Dr. Agustine I. Doronila, School of Chemistry, University of Melbourne, Victoria 3010, Australia. Dr. Celeste Leiden G. Gruèzo DVM/MA, 7288 Santosha Avenue corner Astheya Street, Istana Lovina Bay Park, Puypuy, Bay 4033, Laguna. **Dr. Rafael D. Guerrero III**, National Academy of Science and Technology, Level 3, Science Heritage Building, Department of Science and Technology Complex, Bicutan, Taguig City, MetroManila. Dr.Mehmet Varol, Muğla Sıtkı Koçman University, Faculty of Science, Department of Molecular Biology and Genetics, Kötekli Campus, 48000, Muğla, Turkey.

#### Technical Production Manager: Ydred Harriss G. Gruèzo, BSA

Deadlines for submission of manuscripts. First issue-01 July; Second issue-01 January. Please contact the Chief Editor/Chairman, ALS Board of Editors (see addresses below). Subscription Prices. Foreign: Institutional - US\$1000; Individual - US\$800 (including Volumes 1-28, 1992-2019 + 21 Supplements). Local: Institutional - PhP10,000; Individual - PhP8000 (including Volumes 1-28, 1992-2019 + 21 Supplements). Prepayment of order/back order is required. All issues are to be sent by air mail. Back orders will have an additional packing-handling and postage cost.

Send manuscripts, subscription orders and correspondence to: Dr. William Sm. Gruèzo, ASIA LIFE SCIENCES, 81 Governor F.T. San Luis Avenue, Masaya, Bay 4033, Laguna, Philippines. e-mails: asialifesciences@yahoo.com wsmgruezo@gmail.com Website: http://emtpub.com/journals/ALS/

# ASIA LIFE SCIENCES The Asian International Journal of Life Sciences ISSN 0117-3375 Beyond Excellence©



©Rushing Water Publishers Ltd., Philippines 2019

Asia Life Sciences has an Impact Factor of 0.180

The papers published in *Asia Life Sciences* are indexed/covered by SCOPUS, Elsevier B.V., Radarweg 29, 1043 NX, Amsterdam, The Netherlands; CABI, Wallingford, Oxon, UK; China National Knowledge Infrastructure (CNKI), 66 Xixiaokou Avenue, Haidian District, Beijing, China; J-Gate, Informatics Publishing Limited, No. 194, RV Road, Basavanagudi, Bangalore-560004, Karnataka, India and EBSCO Publishing, Inc., 10 Estes Street, Ipswich, Massachusetts, 01938-0682, USA.

Asia Life Sciences is a recipient of the Journal Accreditation Award of the Commission on Higher Education (CHED), Republic of the Philippines (2010-2016).

Printed on acid-free papers

Actual Date of Publication: *Asia Life Sciences* Supplement 21(2) 2019 - 28 December 2019



81 Governor F.T. San Luis Avenue, Masaya, Bay 4033 Laguna, Philippines Celfone nos. (063) (049) 0916-526-0164; 0977-706-0972 e-mails: asialifesciences@yahoo.com wsmgruezo@gmail.com http://emtpub.com/journals/ALS/ ©Rushing Water Publishers Ltd., Philippines 2019

Asia Life Sciences has an Impact Factor of 0.180

The papers published in *Asia Life Sciences* are indexed/covered by SCOPUS, Elsevier B.V., Radarweg 29, 1043 NX, Amsterdam, The Netherlands; CABI, Wallingford, Oxon, UK; China National Knowledge Infrastructure (CNKI), 66 Xixiaokou Avenue, Haidian District, Beijing, China; J-Gate, Informatics Publishing Limited, No. 194, RV Road, Basavanagudi, Bangalore-560004, EBSCO Publishing, Inc., 10 Estes Street, Ipswich, Karnataka, India and Massachusetts, 01938-0682, USA.

Asia Life Sciences is a recipient of the Journal Accreditation Award of the Commission on Higher Education (CHED), Republic of the Philippines (2010-2016).

Printed on acid-free papers

Actual Date of Publication: Asia Life Sciences Supplement 21, Number 2, 2019 - 28 December 2019

**913** Civil law regulation of contracts for joint activity in Ukraine and other post-socialist states

ALLA V. ZELISKO, VALENTYNA A. VASYLYEVA, BORYS V. MALYSHEV, MYKHAILO M. KHOMENKO & SERGIY V. SARANA

927 Groundwater level dynamics in the territory of the Altai Republic VLADIMIR V. ROLDUGIN,

VALENTINA YE. KATS, NINA A. KOCHEEVA & TATJANA V. BOLBUH

**943** Linearization of radiant heat fluxes in the mathematical modeling of growing bodies by the action of high temperatures in additive manufacturing

#### EKATERINA L. KUZNETSOVA & LEV N. RABINSKIY

955 The problem of trajectory optimization of the interorbital mission for a special service space craft with electric propulsion system for removing space debris objects ILYA A. NIKOLICHEV, VLADIMIR A. OBUKHOV,

#### ALEKSANDR I. POKRYSHKIN & VICTORIA V. SVOTINA

977 Investigation of an elastic curvilinear cylindrical shell in the shape of a parabolic cylinder, taking into account thermal effects during laser sintering

LEV N. RABINSKIY & OLGA V. TUSHAVINA

993 Reviewers - Asia Life Sciences Supplement 21,

Number 2, 2019

**999** Board of Editors - *Asia Life Sciences* Supplement 21, Number 2, 2019

Beyond Excellence©

*e*-mails: asialifesciences@yahoo.com wsmgruezo@gmail.com http://emtpub.com/journals/ALS/

©Rushing Water Publishers Ltd., Philippines 2019

Actual Date of Publication: *Asia Life Sciences* Supplement 21(2) 2019 - 28 December 2019

<b>783</b> On the generation of mechanical	vibrations	of semi-
conductor membranes under local	pulsed exci	tation

ARKADIY A. SKVORTSOV & IVAN A. POSELSKY

**795** The doctrine of human rights in the field of private law relations: legal theoretical aspects

VERONICA YU. HORIELOVA, VASYL A. OMELCHUK, OLEKSANDR F. KALINICHENKO, INNA V. NAIDA & YULIYA V. SAGAYDAK

821 Civil law contract: Doctrinal and legal approaches
OLEKSANDRA O. KARMAZA, YULIA M. PANFILOVA,
ANASTASIIA A. SAPAROVA,

ALINA S. SHELUDCHENKOVA & SERHII M. ORIEKHOV 837 Heat transfer in nonlinear anisotropic growing bodies based on analytical solution

**EKATERINA L. KUZNETSOVA & LEV N. RABINSKIY 847** Issues and prospects of legal regulation of commercial concession in Ukraine

TATYANA V. BODNAR,

OLENA A. BELIANEVYCH, NINO B. PATSURIIA,

VALERIA V. RADZYVILIUK & VIKTORIIA V. RIEZNIKOVA

863 Protection of ownership right in the court: The essence and particularities VIACHESLAV V. VAPNIARCHUK,

IRYNA I. PUCHKOVSKA,

OLEKSII V. TAVOLZHANSKYI & ROMAN I. TASHIAN 881 The right to artistic freedom in post-Soviet countries VALENTYN O. BAZHANOV, VIKTORIIA O. BAZHANOVA,

VIRA O. KACHUR, LILIIA O. PANKOVA

& MARYNA V. PUSHKAR

897 Mathematical modeling of heat and mass transfer in shock layer on dimmed bodies at aerodynamic heating of aircraft

LEV N. RABINSKIY,

OLGA V. TUSHAVINA & VLADIMIR F. FORMALEV

689 Investigation of a complex stress-strain state of a cylindrical shell with a dynamically collapsing internal elastic base under the influence of temperature fields of various physical nature

BORIS A. ANTUFEV,

EKATERINA L. KUZNETSOVA, LEV N. RABINSKIY & OLGA V. TUSHAVINA

**697** Certain aspects of interaction between the state and civil law in CIS countries

YULIIA V. TSURKAN-SAIFULINA,

KONSTIANTYN M. VITMAN & DENIS A. KOLODIN

719 Legal relation: The issues of delineation (on the basis of the civil law of Ukraine) OLEG M. YAROSHENKO,

ANDREY M. SLIUSAR, OLENA H. SEREDA

& VIKTORIIA O. ZAKRYNYTSKA

735 Property civil law liability and material liability of employees for damage caused to an employer:

On the basis of civil law of Ukraine

OLEG M. YAROSHENKO, OLENA V. MOSKALENKO, LARYSA YU. VELYCHKO & VOLODYMYR S. KOVRYGIN

749 Hardening of samples made of titanium and iron-chromium-nickel alloys to improve their strength, resource and fatigue characteristics

ARKADIY A. SKVORTSOV & EVGENIYA O. GNATYUK

759 Digital interpretation of gas dynamics problems as a means of optimizing fundamental general engineering education VALERIY V. BODRYSHEV,

#### LIDIYA G. NARTOVA & LEV N. RABINSKIY

775 Complex stressed deformed state of a cylindrical shell with a dynamically destructive internal elastic base under the action of temperature fields of various physical nature

BORIS A. ANTUFEV,

EKATERINA L. KUZNETSOVA,

LEV N. RABINSKIY & OLGA V. TUSHAVINA

**563** Effectiveness of the program for development of prosecutor's ecological and legal consciousness

MARYNA DEI, OLEKSANDR KOBETS, Andriy Honcharov, Yaroslav Tsekhmister & Katerina Shapovalova

**577** Prevention of human rights violations

OKSANA MYRONETS, MYKHAILO BURDIN, OKSANA TSUKAN & YURII NESTERIAK

**593** Sounding multicode texts: codes, structure, components

NINA L. FEDOTOVA, VALENTINA A. SENTSOVA, NATALYA M. MARUSENKO, TATYANA B. AVLOVA, BORIS N. KOVALENKO & DARIA A. SHCHUKINA

617 Development of a software-hardware complex to diagnose electro-thermal overloads of semi-conductor sensors **ARKADIY A. SKVORTSOV**, **SERGEY M. ZUEV**,

DMITRIY O. VARLAMOV & MARINA V. KORYACHKO

**629** Minimization of asymmetry of thrust of dual-flow turbojet engines of airliner in accordance with the results of system analysis of thrust parameters

ADELIYA YU. BUROVA

645 Features of heat transfer in dissociated air supersonic flows PETR V. NIKITIN, LEV N. RABINSKIY & OLGA V. TUSHAVINA

**657** Principles of equitable reparation in the case of compulsory alienation of immovable property

EKATERINA A. GILINA, YURY V. MISHALCHENKO, GEORGE V. ALEXEYEV, ANDREY V. TOROPYGIN & EKATERINA B. RADCHENKO

667 Basic personality structure

VLADIMIR A. STARKOVSKIY

461 Genesis and legal regulation of mediation institute in Ukraine IULIIA SHMALENKO, OLENA MITINA & OLGA KUDELINA

**479** Three subject didactics in professional-pedagogical training of future lawyers on the basis of acme-culturological approach **OLENA IVANII**,

### **IHOR IVANII & TAMARA KHARCHENKO**

**493** Public administration of legal education in the practice of the European Court of Human Rights

RUSLAN S. KARAHIOZ, OKSANA V. LEHKA & SERHII I. MINCHENKO

**505** The right to education of refugees

MARYNA DEI, TAMARA KORTUKOVA, VITALII KHODANOVYCH, KAREN ISMAILOV & ANATOLIY FRANTSUZ

**517** Using English as a foreign language when teaching subjects of the criminal law cycle

# NATALIA SEMCHUK, SOFIIA LYKHOVA & ULIYA DEMIANENKO

**535** Guarantees of realization of the rights and freedoms of the person in the national legal system: Teaching technique

# ANATOLII SHEVCHENKO, OLENA KALHANOVA, SERHII KUDIN & OLENA KRAVCHENKO

**549** Creating a safe educational environment for children deprived of parental care: Pedagogical and socio-legal aspects

VIKTORIIA SYDORENKO & ALLA KOVALCHUK

341 Ensuring of child's dignity as a principle of modern education: Administrative and legal aspects
OLENA KOVALOVA, MAKSYM KORNIJENKO
& OLENA POSTOL

359 Modern law education in the context of natural understanding of law ANDRII M. KUCHUK, LILIIA M. SERDIUK & YULIIA S. ZAVHORODNIA

**371** Developing computer literacy among elementary school children – Education for the future

NEVENKA TATKOVIĆ, LINDA JURAKOVIĆ & SANJA TATKOVIĆ

385 Role of modern legal elite in formation of legal culture of Ukrainian society LILIIA MATVIEIEVA,
POLINA BALTAJI & VIKTOR KONOPELSKY

**405** Legal regulation of conformity assessment of personnel qualification in construction

OLEKSANDR NEPOMNYASHCHYY, Oksana Medvedchuk & Iryna Lahunova

421 Legal education in Ukraine in the context of integration to the European educational space
LIUDMYLA DOBROBOH, VITALII ZAVHORODNII
& OLENA ORLOVA

**433** International customs law as a means of public and private law specialists training improvement

IEVHEN V. BILOZOROV, OLENA M. IVANII & SERHII M. PEREPOLKIN

**447** Approaches to education reform for children with special needs worldwide

OLEG M. REZNIK, VYACHESLAV V. VOLIK
& OLHA I. BEZPALOVA

**213** Problems of construction of the financial system of the state: Organizational and legal aspects

YURIY HARUST, DARIA ZAGORSKA,

#### SVITLANA VASHCHENKO & SERHII MOSKALENKO

233 Foreign experience in providing public security and order by police during mass events and the possibility of using it in Ukraine

# VITALII PCHELIN, LINA FOMINA, RUSLANA MAKSAKOVA & IVAN KUBARIEV

**247** Economic crimes: Innovative mechanisms of counteraction by law enforcement agencies

# YURII HARUST, VADYM MELNYK, YURII KIIASHKO & VIRA HALUNKO

**265** Problems of construction of national financial system under the influence of globalization processes

# LIUDMYLA RUDENKO, YEVHEN BARASH, IRYNA PETROVA & IHOR BOHDANIUK

**279** Comparative analysis of the financial system of Ukraine and foreign countries

# IHOR CHUMACHENKO, VALENTYN MELNYK & VIKTORIIA SYCHOVA

**295** Vectors of education development: From enlightenment to post-modernism

# LEONID C. VAKHOVSKYI, ANDRIY V. IVCHENKO & YANA S. SNISARENKO

309 Innovations in Ukrainian modern art: New technologies TATYANA MIRONOVA & ANASTASIIA HONCHARENKO

325 Modernization of the academic discipline
"Administrative law" GANNA GUBINA, OLENA IVANII
& ALINA KUROVA

**101** Problems of the introduction of the academic honesty principles in domestic institutions of higher education

ANATOLII KULISH, INNA GYRENKO,

#### OLEKSANDR KOBZAR & BOHDANA PAVLENKO

117 Administrative and legal mechanism of execution of decisions of the European Court of Human Rights as the basis of case law application in the judicial system of Ukraine Oksana Pchelina, Viktor Sezonov, Valeriia Myrhorod-Karpova

& YEVHENIIA ZHEROBKINA

135 Theoretical and legal analysis of the category "financial security of the state"

SERHII SHARTAVA, MARINA SMOLYAROVA, YURIY HARUST & KONSTIANTYN KRYVOSHEIEV

**153** International financial institutions as subjects of the financial system of the state **TETIANA SYROID**,

YURIY KOLOMIETS, OLEKSANDR KLIUIEV

& VALERIIA MYRHOROD-KARPOVA

**165** Legal responsibility of police officers in conducting pre-trial investigations of crimes

ANATOLIY KLOCHKO, DARYA KAZNACHEYEVA, OLEKSANDR MUZYCHUK & ELENA KISELOVA

177 Constitutional complaint in Ukraine: Theory and practice TATYANA MILOVA, PAVLO PINCHUK,

NATALIIA RYBALKO & SERHII HRECHANIUK

189 Search for ways to optimize the activities of state bodies managing the funds of international technical assistance ANDRII MANZHULA, YURIY HARUST, VALERIIA MYRHOROD-KARPOVA & YEVGENY SOBOL



The Asian International Journal of Life Sciences
\_\_\_\_\_\_ISSN 0117-3375

Supplement 21 Number 2

**28 December 2019** 

### CONTENTS

1 Theoretical and legal analysis of foreign experience on illegal amber production: Environmental and economic aspects

OLEKSH DROZD, SERGH PAVLENKO

ERSH DROZD, SERGH I AVLENKO & VOLODYMYR SEVRUK

**21** Students' scientific activity as a component of the lawyers' professional training

LILIYA RIABOVOL, YURIY HARUST, OLENA DZHAFAROVA & YEVGENY SOBOL

**45** Administrative and legal mechanism of land relations protection in Ukraine and Russia: Comparative legal analysis

OLEKSANDR SVIDERSKYI, OLEKSANDR HAVRYLENKO, KOSTIANTYN KOVALENKO & TETIANA SHLAPKO

**59** Personality sense transformation of the professional activity of practical psychologists with different behavior strategies

NADIIA M. BIBIK,

IRYNA YA. ZHOROVA & MARIANNA M. MARUSYNETS

77 Legal education and science in Ukraine: Tendencies and perspectives OLENA CHERNETSKA, OLHA VARYCH,

DARHA BAIRAK & TAMARA MOMOTENKO

**87** Invalidation in a court of law of certain types of contracts concluded in connection with the provision of medical services

OLENA P. RIABCHENKO,

VOLODYMYR YA. MATSIUK &YURII YU. RIABCHENKO Cont. on Inside Back Cover

Reviewers for this Issue: Refer to pages 993-998 of this Issue.

©Rushing Water Publishers Ltd. 2019 Printed in the Philippines